BY-LAWS OF SKANEATELES ROTARY FOUNDATION, INC.

Revision History		
Version	Comment	Date Adopted
1	Initial Release	November 29, 2007
2	Removed Board Initiation Clauses, Added Detail on Fiduciary Responsibilities, Clarified Language	August 8, 2013
3	Article III/Section 12 updated to allow appointment of investment manager / removes references to investment policy.	November 12, 2015
4	Change of Terms of Service for Trustees in Article III/Section 4	June 30, 2016

The purpose of this document is to designate the rules under which the Foundation shall operate, and define the governance of the Foundation. The Foundation shall be governed by the Board of Trustees in accordance with these by-laws.

ARTICLE I - PURPOSE OF FOUNDATION

The Foundation shall operate exclusively for the benefit of charitable, educational, health, welfare and recreational needs of the community in accordance with section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

ARTICLE II - MEMBERSHIP

The membership of the Foundation shall consist of all members of the Skaneateles Rotary Club (SRC) who qualify as hereinafter provided. Membership in the Skaneateles Rotary Foundation (SRF) is automatic to any member of the SRC in good standing with the SRC. Any such member will be eligible to serve on the Board of Trustees of the Foundation.

ARTICLE III - TRUSTEES, OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

SECTION 1. The Board of Trustees shall consist of 6 members who shall be elected by majority vote of the Foundation members present, once a quorum has been established, at the annual meeting of the Foundation. The term for newly elected Trustees shall commence on July 1 following their election.

SECTION 2. Only members of the SRF shall be eligible to serve as Trustees. Candidates for the position of Trustee shall be presented to the members by the Nominating Committee.

SECTION 3. The Board of Trustees shall consist of three classes of two members each. Initially, the first class shall serve for one year, the second class shall serve for two years, and the third class shall serve for three years. Thereafter all classes will be elected for a three-year term, and each year the members of the Foundation will elect a new class of two (2) Trustees.

SECTION 4. No Trustee shall serve more than two (2) consecutive full three-year terms. After a one-year break in service, a member may again serve on the Board of Trustees.

SECTION 5. Nominating committees shall be appointed by the SRF Chairperson and ratified by the Board. The Nominating committee shall report the nominations 20 days prior to the annual meeting.

SECTION 6. The officers shall consist of a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary. All officers shall continue to hold office until their successors are elected and duly qualified.

SECTION 7. The Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Treasurer and Secretary shall be elected by the Board of Trustees from among the Board. The election of officers shall be made at the first meeting of the Board of Trustees following the annual meeting at which a new class of Trustees was elected.

SECTION 8. One Trustee shall serve as a liaison between the Foundation Board of Trustees and the SRC Board of Directors.

SECTION 9. The Chairperson of the Trustees shall preside at all meetings of the Trustees. In the absence of the Chairperson, the Vice-Chairperson shall preside. In the absence of both the Chairperson and the Vice-Chairperson, the Trustees shall select a Chairperson pro tem from among those present.

SECTION 10. The Secretary shall: notify each Trustee of all Board meetings; notify all Foundation members of the annual meeting and scheduled Board meetings by publication in the club bulletin; issue all authorized notices to members or other persons; make and keep a written record of all meetings of the Board of Trustees and of the Foundation members; have custody of the by-laws; conduct the correspondence for the Foundation; and execute all such writings as he/she may be officially instructed and authorized to do.

SECTION 11. The Treasurer shall be charged with the collection of all income and contributions, with custody of the funds of the Foundation, and with their disbursement as directed by resolution of the Board of Trustees. At the annual meeting of the Foundation members and at any other time when requested by the Board of Trustees, the Treasurer shall make a full written report covering the financial transactions of the Foundation.

In addition, on a quarterly basis, but no later than 30 days following each calendar quarter end, the Treasurer shall make a full written report covering the financial activity of the Foundation to the Board of Trustees, including providing income and expense, balance sheet, and cash flow statements for the Foundation as of said date. The treasurer shall also provide a copy of any bank or brokerage statements, including copies of checks as of said date. Furthermore, the treasurer shall provide a Copy of the Foundation's annual tax return within 90 days of the Foundation's fiscal year end.

SECTION 12. It shall be the duty of the Trustees, and they shall be vested with the power to, control and manage the affairs, funds and finances of the Foundation. The Board may, in its discretion, appoint a depository agent and/or investment manager to manage any and all funds and property of the Foundation.

The Trustees shall also be vested with the power to establish a Permanent Endowment Fund to support the programs of the Foundation in perpetuity. The investment objective of the Permanent Endowment Fund shall be to invest in a portfolio that allows for capital to be preserved and enhanced over time, both in real in nominal terms, and that is expected to produce an average annual return that at least equals inflation, plus any endowment spending, without undue risk.

SECTION 13. The Board of Trustees shall be vested with power and authority to: fill vacancies on the Board in accordance with these By-Laws; to censure, suspend and expel Trustees for cause; and to do all lawful things deemed expedient and desirable to promote the objects and purposes of the Corporation.

SECTION 14. No more than two Trustees may serve on both the Board of Trustees as well as on the SRC Board of Directors during the same fiscal year. No member of the Board of Trustees shall serve as an officer of the SRC during the same fiscal year.

SECTION 15. The Board of Trustees shall meet a minimum of two times each fiscal year.

SECTION 16. Special meetings of the Board shall be called by the Chairperson at the request of any Trustee.

ARTICLE IV - MEETING OF MEMBERS

SECTION 1. The annual meeting of the members shall be held on or before the last Thursday in May for the election of a new class of Trustees. The fiscal year of the Foundation shall run from July 1 to June 30, and that time frame shall represent one year of service for Trustees.

SECTION 2. Special meetings of the Foundation membership shall be called by the Chairperson at the request of any member. Members shall be notified by publication in the club bulletin as to the business to be transacted at such special meetings.

ARTICLE V - QUORUM

SECTION 1. A majority of members shall constitute a quorum at any annual or special meeting of the members.

SECTION 2. A majority of Trustees shall constitute a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Trustees.

ARTICLE VI - VACANCIES

In the event of a Board vacancy, the Trustees shall appoint a qualified replacement from the membership, who shall serve until the next annual meeting. When applicable, the Nominating Committee shall nominate a qualified candidate to fill the remaining term of one or two years in addition to the two-member class for a three-year term.

ARTICLE VII - INTERPRETATION OF THE BY-LAWS

All questions as to construction of the By-Laws shall be decided by the Board of Trustees.

The By-Laws may be added to or amended at an annual meeting of the Foundation members, or at a special meeting called for that purpose, upon a two-thirds affirmative vote of members present, provided that the proposed change has been published in the club bulletin and announced at regular meetings of the SRC for at least four weeks prior to the meeting date.

ARTICLE IX - RULES OF PROCEDURE

The rules of procedure at meetings of the Foundation membership and of the Board of Trustees shall be in accordance with Robert's Rules of Parliamentary Procedure.

ARTICLE X - NOTICE OF MEETING

The Secretary shall give reasonable notice to members of meetings of the Board of Trustees. Such notice shall consist of, but not be limited to, publication in the club bulletin. Notice of regular or special meetings of Foundation membership shall be made by publication in the club bulletin for two weeks prior to the meeting.

ARTICLE XI - INDEMNIFICATION

The Foundation shall indemnify any Trustee, or any former Trustee, to the full extent permitted by law.

ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS

SECTION 1. No Trustee or member of SRF shall be paid any compensation for his/her services. Trustees shall serve strictly as unpaid volunteers without compensation of any kind whatsoever. No Trustee, member or employee shall receive or be entitled to any part of the net earnings or property of the Foundation, or any funds contributed to it.

SECTION 2. The mailing address of the Foundation is Post Office Box 316, Skaneateles, New York 13152.

SECTION 3. The Trustees shall be allowed to conduct business in any electronic fashion that meets with New York State not-for-profit law.

ARTICLE XIII - AUDIT

The Board of Trustees shall appoint a committee of members of the Foundation to conduct an audit of the accounts of the Foundation and report to the membership annually.

ARTICLE XIV - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

All trustees shall immediately disclose to the Board of Trustees any actual or potential conflict of interest arising during his or her tenure with the Foundation and shall excuse themselves from voting on matters in which they have a direct or indirect financial interest. It is the policy of this Foundation

to avoid even the appearance of impropriety in its dealings and affairs, and the actions of the Trustees shall be governed accordingly.

ARTICLE XV - DISPOSITION OF ASSETS UPON DISSOLUTION

In the event the Trustees determine that the Foundation shall be dissolved, upon dissolution of the Foundation, the remaining assets of the Foundation shall be transferred to one or more other foundations, corporations, or organizations engaged in activities substantially similar to those of the Foundation, and as shall at the time, qualify as an exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue Code of Law) pursuant to then applicable New York State statutes governing not-for-profit entities.

Approved and adopted this 30th day of June, 2016.

Skaneateles Rotary Foundation, Inc.

Trustees:

DOCUMENT WITH SIGNATURES ON FILE WITH CURRENT CHAIRPERSON

Charles O'Neil Chairperson

John Moran Vice Chairperson

Roberta Williams Secretary

Kathy Crelot Treasurer

William Conole Trustee

P. Gard Lorey Trustee